City qf
Dublin

OHIO, USA

MEETING MINUTES

Planning & Zoning Commission
Thursday, February 20, 2025

CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair Way called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. in Council Chamber and welcomed
everyone to the February 20, 2025 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. He stated that the
meeting also could be accessed at the City’s website. Public comments on the cases were welcome
from meeting attendees and from those viewing at the City’s website.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mr. Way led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Commission members present:  Gary Alexander, Jason Deschler, Dan Garvin, Kathy Harter, Kim
Way

Commission members absent: Rebecca Call, Jamey Chinnock

Staff members present: Thaddeus Boggs, Jenny Rauch, Tammy Noble

ACCEPTANCE OF MEETING DOCUMENTS

Mr. Deschler moved, Mr. Alexander seconded acceptance of the documents into the record and
approval of the 02-06-25 meeting minutes.

Vote: Ms. Harter, yes; Mr. Deschler, yes; Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Way, yes; Mr. Garvin, yes.
[Motion carried 5-0.]

Mr. Way stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) is an advisory board to City Council
when rezoning and platting of property are under consideration. In such cases, City Council will
receive recommendations from the Commission and make the decision. In other cases, the
Commission has the final decision-making responsibility. The Rules and Regulations of the Planning
and Zoning Commission state that no new agenda items are to be introduced after 10:30 p.m.
Anyone who intends to address the Commission on administrative cases must be sworn in. Mr.
Way explained the hearing process that would be followed.

Mr. Way swore in staff and audience members who anticipated providing testimony.

CASE REVIEW
CONSENT CASE

Mr. Way stated that one case is eligible for the Consent Agenda this evening.



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — February 20, 2025
Page 2 of 11

Case #24-159AFDP

Sarnova Headquarters — Amended Final Development Plan

Request for review and approval of site modifications to an existing office building.
The 5.24-acre site is zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development District, Llewellyn Farms
and is located approximately 180 feet northwest of the intersection of Bradenton
Avenue and Frantz Road.

There was no request to remove the case from the Consent Agenda and no public comment.

Mr. Garvin moved, Ms. Harter seconded approval of the Consent Case with the following
conditions:
1. The applicant work with staff to finalize the locations of the ADA spaces, subject to staff
approval; and
2. The applicant work with staff on the final location and design of the Electric Vehicle
charging stations, subject to staff approval.

Vote: Mr. Way, yes; Ms. Harter, yes; Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Garvin, yes; Mr. Deschler, yes.
[Motion carried: 5-0]

Case #25-010AFDP

Dublin Scioto Building Addition — Amended Final Development Plan

Request for review and approval for two building additions to an existing school. The
65.25- acre site is zoned PUD: NE Quad and is located north of the Hard Road and
Bryson Cove Circle intersection.

Mr. Deschler recused himself due to a conflict of interest and left the room for the entirety of the
item.

Applicant Presentation

Todd Boyer, Fanning Howey, 5200 Upper Metro Place, Suite 350, Dublin, stated that they are here
in partnership with Dublin City Schools requesting a two-story academic wing addition as well as a
small dining commons expansion at the Dublin Scioto High School campus located at 4000 Hard
Road. The existing two-story high school consists of mostly brick masonry exterior facades with
stucco accents, a combination of flat roof and sloped metal roof areas, as well as exposed column
accents. The building also has an aluminum storefront window system with slightly tinted glazing.
In an effort to accommodate 600 additional students by 2026, the existing cafeteria requires an
expansion of 6,250 square feet to support the added population. They are also proposing a two-
story, 56,000-square-foot academic wing to the north of the existing building. The first floor of the
academic wing consists of ten classrooms, three special learning communities and student support
services. The cafeteria expansion consists of approximately 4,000 square feet of additional indoor
dining space and 2,000 square feet of covered outdoor dining space. The second floor of the
academic addition mimics the first floor and consists of 14 classrooms, mechanical space and
student support space. The academic wing and cafeteria expansion are designed to match the
exterior fenestration materials, scale, and mass of the existing building to seamlessly integrate into
the overall campus. Renderings were shown illustrating the same brick material and patterns, same
window pattern, and the same pitch and height of the existing metal roofs between proposed and




Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — February 20, 2025
Page 3 of 11

existing. Mr. Boyer noted that there are no roof gutters on the existing academic wing and the
intention is to continue that approach.

Megan Cyr, The Kleinger Group, 350 Worthington Road, Suite H, Westerville, stated that they are
requesting a temporary construction drive access curb cut to Hard Road with the intent to help
maintain separation between foot, bus, student and staff traffic during the day. As part of the
landscaping plan, they are removing trees for construction and replacing them per Code
requirements. Replacement trees will be located along the north side of the new addition to break
up that view.

Staff Presentation

Ms. Noble stated that the architect has done an excellent job explaining the architecture and
application. This is a request for an Amended Final Development Plan (AFDP). The original Final
Development Plan was approved for the school in 1993. PZC has heard several AFDP requests
regarding amendments for the school. That will continue as the school is expanded. The
Commission is being asked how this proposal aligns with the development text that is proposed for
the school and if it adheres to the surrounding community.
The request is on a 65-acre site north of Hard Road, just west of Sawmill Road. It is a Planned Unit
Development (PUD) called the Northeast Quad. This site is centrally located within the Quad.
Photos of existing conditions were shared. The primary addition is the academic wing to the rear
of the building. It is a 56,000 square foot addition centrally located between two existing nodes of
the building. They are also proposing a 6,200 square foot dining area addition in the western
portion of the building. This request is to address increased student populations within the building.
There is a detention basin for the new addition. There are three existing curb cuts from Hard Road,
all of which access parking areas in the central portion of the building. They are proposing a
temporary fourth access point that would allow construction activity at the rear of the building.
Staff acknowledges the importance of separating construction activity from the school population
with the caveat that the access point needs to be removed upon the completion of construction.
The applicant has done an excellent job matching existing architecture with what is proposed.
Staff recommends approval of the Amended Final Development Plan with the following conditions:
1) The applicant continues to work with Engineering at building permitting to demonstrate
stormwater management compliance in accordance with Chapter 53 of the City of Dublin
Code of Ordinances.
2) The applicant coordinates with the City of Dublin regarding the temporary access point
including restoring the site to equal or improved conditions upon completion of the project.
3) The applicant works with the Washington Township Fire Department to provide required
access for fire suppression around all sides of the building prior to the issuance of a building
permit.

Commission Questions

Mr. Garvin asked if additional parking is required. Ms. Cyr stated that the current proposal meets
zoning code requirements. The size of the stadium is what requires the most parking. This number
of additional students and classrooms does not require additional parking. Ms. Noble stated that a
traffic study is not applicable for an AFDP.



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — February 20, 2025
Page 4 of 11

Mr. Alexander asked why the applicant is not using the current retention pond. Ms. Cyr stated that
it is included in their calculations and they are currently working with City Engineering Staff to
make sure they are providing the storage needed for the addition. Since the site was originally
constructed in 1993, EPA water quality requirements have changed. The new stormwater
management will meet those water quality requirements.

Mr. Alexander sought confirmation that two ponds are proposed. Ms. Cyr answered affirmatively.
She stated that the current location of the building sits at a saddle point with drainage conveyed
to the east and to the west. Both are tributary to the current pond. They are accounting for the
ponds in current calculations to ensure they are not sending more stormwater offsite than existing
conditions.

Mr. Alexander asked if it is feasible to combine those. Ms. Cyr stated that it is not. They would
have to make one very large to leave one undetained.

Mr. Alexander asked if it is possible to plant it so that it looks more garden-like. Ms. Cyr stated that
there are trees on the landscape plan in the eastern basin. These locations are storm water
detention so when a rain event occurs, it will hold the water and then the water will all be released
so it should look like a grass area. They will not look like the pond on site currently. Ms. Cyr stated
that the stormwater structures underneath can make landscaping difficult, but they will consider
adding trees to the basin on the west to convey the same look as the one on the east side.

Ms. Harter asked if the applicant has met with parents and teachers and informed the public.

Jeff Stark, Dublin City Schools, 6371 Shier Rings Road, Dublin, stated that the principal had
conversations with parents. All teachers toured the Jerome site because this mimics that addition.
It is a fast-moving project; they did not put together a robust collaborative plan. The principal has
communicated this out to that community.

Ms. Harter asked about the protection on the glass. Mr. Stark stated that there is special film put
on glass that provides an extra 20-30 seconds before the glass can be broken. They work with all
applicable departments to ensure they meet safety standards.

Ms. Harter stated that Scioto is such an art-centric area, she asked if there is an opportunity to add
art in the outdoor cafeteria. She also asked if they anticipate outdoor classrooms. Mr. Stark stated
that utilization is up to the principal and administration of the school. Their goal is to give them the
space they need.

Ms. Harter asked about walking paths. Mr. Stark stated that the intent was to allow people to
navigate around the building as best possible.

Mr. Way stated that when this building was built, there must have been a master plan. He asked
if an addition was contemplated then. Mr. Boyer stated Fanning Howey designed the building and
they have all of the original plans. The added theater was the only master planned area
contemplated.

Mr. Way stated that there are no gutters. He asked about the water runoff. Mr. Boyer stated that
that part of the building has very large overhangs. On the addition, there is a five-foot-wide mow
strip which has a French drain underneath it that takes the water underground.

Mr. Way asked if sidewalks are for fire access. Mr. Boyer stated that they are still working with the
Fire Department but sidewalks will serve for fire egress.

Public Comment



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — February 20, 2025
Page 5 of 11

No public comment was given.

Commission Discussion

Mr. Garvin stated that he is supportive of the plan with conditions as proposed by staff.
Mr. Alexander stated that he is comfortable with the application.

Ms. Harter stated that it is a beatiful building being enhanced.

Mr. Way shared his support for the project.

Mr. Alexander moved, Ms. Harter seconded approval of the Amended Final Development Plan with
the following conditions:

1) The applicant continues to work with Engineering at building permitting to demonstrate
stormwater management compliance in accordance with Chapter 53 of the City of
Dublin Code of Ordinances.

2) The applicant coordinates with the City of Dublin regarding the temporary access point
including restoring the site to equal or improved conditions upon completion of the
project.

3) The applicant works with the Washington Township Fire Department to provide
required access for fire suppression around all sides of the building prior to the issuance
of a building permit.

Vote: Mr. Garvin, yes; Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Way, yes; Ms. Harter, yes.
[Moation carried: 4-0]

Mr. Deschler returned to the dais.

Case #25-005ADMC

Code Amendments

Review and recommendation of approval for Zoning Code Amendments to Section
153.076 regarding Property Nuisance regulations.

Staff Presentation

Ms. Rauch stated that this is a request for recommendation to City Council on amendments to
the Zoning Code, specific to the Public Nuisance section. Public Nuisance regulates the public
health, safety, and welfare of the City. This is much of what the Code Enforcement team uses to
ensure that properties are maintained and that we have consistent standards. The goal of these
amendments is to provide clarifications in language. Planning staff has worked closely with Code
Enforcement to make sure these changes incorporate their suggestions. Currently, the Code
addresses structures. These amendments would broaden that application to the entire premises
and for all properties. Language has been added to regulate portable storage. Clarification has
been added to grass and weeds giving Code Enforcement consistent guidance about weeds.
Language has been added to provide additional screening options for residential trash/recycling.
Language has been added to address vehicle storage and screening.

Staff is seeking a recommendation of approval of the proposed code changes.

Commission Questions





















